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Architectural Review Board Staff Report 
 

Project Type:  Amended Site Development Plan  
 
Meeting Date:  November 12, 2015 
 
From:   Jessica Henry, AICP 
   Project Planner 
 
CC:   Aimee Nassif, Planning & Development Services Director 
 
Location: South side of Olive Blvd., west of its intersection with Woods Mill Rd. 
 
Applicant: Doster, Ullom, & Boyle, LLC  on behalf of Caplaco Seven, Inc. and Dierbergs Four 

Seasons, Inc. 
 
Description: Four Seasons Plaza, Lot 2 (Panera): An Amended Site Development Plan, 

Amended Landscape Plan, Partial Amended Lighting Plan, Amended Architectural 
Elevations and an Architect's Statement of Design for an 8.29 acre tract of land 
zoned “PC” Planned Commercial District located on the south side of Olive 
Boulevard west of its intersection with Woods Mill Road. 

 
PROPOSAL SUMMARY 
The request is for an Amended Site Development Plan, Amended Landscape Plan, Partial Amended Lighting 
Plan, Amended Architectural Elevations and an Architect’s Statement of Design for an existing retail center 
located on Lot 2 of the Four Seasons Plaza development. The purpose for the project is to construct a fast 
food drive-thru and to renovate the approximately 4,744 square foot endcap tenant space at the east end 
of the building to allow a new restaurant tenant—Panera—to occupy the space that currently houses the 
Mongolian BBQ restaurant. The subject site is zoned “PC” Planned Commercial District and is governed 
under the terms and conditions of City of Chesterfield Ordinance 2855. The proposed exterior building 
modifications primarily consist of new parapet tower elements, metal canopies, and additional 
fenestration, including a new aluminum and glass storefront. Ceramic tile wainscoting, new paint, and 
green canvas awnings complete the design while complementing the existing center. 
  
 
 

III. A. 

http://www.chesterfield.mo.us/
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HISTORY OF SUBJECT SITE 
Lot 2 of the Four Seasons Plaza was zoned “C-8” Planned Commercial District by St. Louis County in 1975 
under Ordinance 7836.  In the decades since, the site-specific governing ordinance has been amended 
several times, including the most recent ordinance amendment which was approved in June 2015. This 
amendment served to modify certain development criteria, to add the “restaurant, fast food with drive-
thru” use, and to rezone a small portion of the adjacent Adjusted Lot 1, which was zoned “C-2” Shopping 
District, to create a new “PC” Planned District in order to accommodate the proposed drive-thru restaurant 
design. A Boundary Adjustment Plat was also approved in order to align the property line between Lot 1 
and Lot 2 to correspond with the limits of the requested change of zoning for the small portion of Lot 1. 
 

 
 

 
STAFF ANALYSIS 
General Requirements for Site Design:  
 
A. Site Relationships        
The subject site is located within the Four Seasons Plaza development at the intersection of Olive 
Boulevard and Highland Park Drive. The Four Seasons Plaza development consists of two separate lots 
each containing retail buildings—the portion of the development impacted by the current request is 
located in the eastern endcap tenant space and adjacent parking area on Lot 2 which is 8.29 acres in size, 
as shown in the image above.  
 
B. Circulation System and Access        
The Four Seasons Plaza development is currently accessed via multiple curb cuts along Olive Boulevard. 
No changes are proposed to these accesses; traffic coming off of Highland Park Drive will be directed 
onto the east-west internal drive and into the drive-thru. The drive-thru will be located in the existing 
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parking area adjacent to the proposed tenant space. In order to establish safe vehicular and pedestrian 
circulation patterns, stop signs, pedestrian crossing signs and striping, and directional striping and arrows 
will be utilized.  
 
C. Topography        
The existing grade of the property is nearly flat. Minimal changes to the existing topography are planned.  
 
D. Retaining Walls     
No retaining walls are proposed on the site.  
 
General Requirements for Building Design: 
 
A. Scale        
The amendments to the Architectural Elevations include slightly increasing the height of the subject area, 
as shown in the comparison below. Whereas the existing endcap space is dwarfed by the adjacent 
portion of building, adding height to the building will alter the scale to be more consistent with the 
adjacent section of the building. The canopies and wainscot provide a pedestrian scale despite the height 
increase.  

 
B. Design        
The applicant is proposing to eliminate parking spaces in order to install a fast food drive-thru for the 
endcap tenant space, which is to be converted into a new fast food restaurant user. An outdoor seating 
area is proposed in front of the new glass and aluminum storefront. The proposed architectural 
modifications to the building are restricted to the endcap tenant space. The color palette selected, while 
not an exact color match, will coordinate with the existing design of the center while allowing for a 
modern and significantly upgraded appearance.  Metal and fabric awnings will add articulation and color 
accents to the otherwise flat elevations. New parapet towers add articulation and the addition of 
ceramic tile wainscoting introduces a durable material that provides visual interest and a sense of 
completion to the end cap space. 
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C. Materials and Color       
The existing building is constructed of brick, EIFS, metal parapets, and glass and aluminum windows. The 
applicant is proposing modifications to the easternmost endcap tenant space only. The selected color 
palette coordinates with the existing building while modernizing and defining the endcap tenant space. 
The dark metal awnings correspond to the ceramic tile wainscoting, and the green fabric awnings, green 
façade elements, and beige paint tie the design to the adjacent building section. 
 
D. Landscape Design and Screening     
The proposed drive thru is surrounded by substantial landscaping, including the addition of flowering 
trees, shrubs, and landscape beds comprised of annuals, perennials, and grasses. Additional landscaped 
areas are provided throughout the development in accordance with the requirements of the site specific 
ordinance.  
 
In order to shield the adjacent Four Seasons residential subdivision from any undesirable effects of the 
proposed drive-thru, a wooden fence with sound attenuating elements is located at the southern end of 
the drive thru. Additional landscaping will be planted on the adjacent property as agreed upon between 
the applicant and adjacent property owners. 
 
E. Signage     
Signage is not part of the proposal before Architectural Review Board and will be reviewed separately 
by Staff.  
 
F. Lighting     
The applicant is proposing two wall mounted light fixtures. The first is an up/down square fixture located 
under and shielded by the proposed metal canopies with the exception of the two fixtures adjacent to 
the entry. The light cast from these fixtures is still under review by Staff to ensure that it meets all Unified 
Development Code requirements.  
 
The second fixture is a decorative awning accent light fixture. Although this fixture could be directional, 
the fixture head is angled in a manner that only casts light downward onto the awnings below. 
 
Finally, the applicant is proposing to relocate an existing light pole in order to accommodate the drive-
thru drive lane. No other changes to the existing lighting in the development are proposed in conjunction 
with this request. 
 
DEPARTMENTAL INPUT 
Staff has reviewed the Amended Site Development Plan, Amended Landscape Plan, Partial Amended 
Lighting Plan, Amended Architectural Elevations and Architect’s Statement of Design.   Be advised, this 
project is still going through development review by City Staff and will not proceed to the Planning 
Commission until all outstanding items have been addressed. All recommendations made by the ARB 
will be included in Staff’s report to the Planning Commission. 
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Staff requests action on the Amended Site Development Plan, Amended Landscape Plan, Partial 
Amended Lighting Plan, Amended Architectural Elevations and Architect’s Statement of Design for Four 
Seasons Plaza, Adjusted Lot 2 (Panera). 
 
MOTION 
The following options are provided to the Architectural Review Board for consideration relative to this 
application: 
 
1)  “I move to forward Amended Site Development Plan, Amended Landscape Plan, Partial Amended 

Lighting Plan, Amended Architectural Elevations and Architect’s Statement of Design for Four 
Seasons Plaza, Adjusted Lot 2 (Panera), as presented, with a recommendation for approval (or denial) 
to the Planning Commission.”  

 
2) “I move to forward the Amended Site Development Plan, Amended Landscape Plan, Partial Amended 

Lighting Plan, Amended Architectural Elevations and Architect’s Statement of Design for Four 
Seasons Plaza, Adjusted Lot 2 (Panera), to the Planning Commission with the following 
recommendations…”  

 
Attachments 

1. Architectural Review Packet Submittal   
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